[C] ADOPTION NOTICE

ORYX MIDLAND OIL GATHERING LLC TEXAS TARIFF

CONTAINING RATES, RULES AND REGULATIONS

FOR CRUDE PETROLEUM TRANSPORT

ON THE ORYX GATHERING SYSTEM

EFFECTIVE: JANUARY 1, 2020

[C] Oryx Midland Oil Gathering LLC is adopting herein the rates, rules and regulations set forth in Reliance Gathering, LLC's Texas Tariff No. 1.8.0. Such rates, rules and regulations of Reliance Gathering, LLC are being brought forward unchanged, unless otherwise indicated herein.

Issued by:
Brett Wiggs
Chief Executive Officer
Oryx Midland Oil Gathering LLC
4000 N. Big Spring Street, Suite 500
Midland, TX 79705

Compiled by: Karl Pluger Oryx Midland Oil Gathering LLC 4000 N. Big Spring Street, Suite 500 Midland, TX 79705

P-5 Operator No. 627115 T-4 Permit No. 08623

ORYX MIDLAND OIL GATHERING LLC TEXAS TARIFF

RULES AND REGULATIONS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	DEFINITI	DEFINITIONS; RULES OF CONSTRUCTION			
	1.1.	DEFINITIONS.			
	1.2.	RULES OF CONSTRUCTION.	1		
2.	SHIPPER	AGREEMENTS; FEE SCHEDULE FOR EXISTING ORIGINS; AN	NUAL		
	ADJUSTM	MENT	1		
	2.1.	SHIPPER AGREEMENTS.	1		
	2.2.	FEE SCHEDULE.			
	2.3.	ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT.	1		
3.	RULES A	ND REGULATIONS	2		
	3.1.	COMMISSION RULE 3.71(1)-(19) PROVISIONS.	2		
	3.2.	NOMINATIONS.	6		
	3.3.	INVOICING AND PAYMENT.	6		
	3.4.	MEASUREMENT, INVENTORY ACCOUNTING AND SPECIFICATIONS	6		
	3.5.	SPECIFICATIONS AS TO QUALITY.	7		
	3.6.	TITLE	8		
	3.7.	INDEMNITY	8		
	3.8.	DISCLAIMER OF DAMAGES.	8		
	3.9.	Linefill.			
	3.10.	INTERRUPTION AND CURTAILMENT.	9		
	3.11.	FORCE MAJEURE AND ALLOCATION.	9		
	3.12.	STORAGE OF CRUDE OIL IN TRANSIT.	10		

Attachment 1.1 (Definitions)

Attachment 2.2 (Fee Schedule, Existing Origins)

ORYX MIDLAND OIL GATHERING LLC TEXAS TARIFF

This Tariff ("<u>Tariff</u>") and the fees referenced herein are for intrastate transport service by Oryx Midland Oil Gathering LLC ("<u>Carrier</u>") to qualifying shippers of crude petroleum, subject to the terms, conditions, rules, and regulations ("<u>Rules and Regulations</u>") set forth below.

1. DEFINITIONS; RULES OF CONSTRUCTION

1.1. Definitions.

Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined in the following provisions have the meanings set forth in Attachment 1.1.

1.2. Rules of Construction.

Unless the context requires otherwise, the plural includes the singular, the singular includes the plural, and "including" has the inclusive meaning of "including without limitation." Unless otherwise expressly provided, any reference to Tariff, Fee Schedule, Shipper Agreement, or Applicable Law defined or referred to herein means as it may be amended, modified, or supplemented from time to time, including (in the case of Shipper Agreements) by waiver or consent and (in the case of Applicable Law) by succession of comparable successor law.

2. SHIPPER AGREEMENTS; FEE SCHEDULE FOR EXISTING ORIGINS; ANNUAL ADJUSTMENT

2.1. Shipper Agreements.

Each Shipper may be required to enter into a throughput or transportation agreement ("Shipper Agreement") with Carrier to transport Shipper's Product on the Oryx Gathering System from the origin or connection points ("Origin(s)") to the downstream destination or interconnection point(s) with Connecting Carriers ("Destination(s)") stated in the applicable Shipper Agreement. Applicable fees, terms, and conditions may vary depending on factors such as requested Origin(s), Destination(s), duration, committed Product, and available capacity at the time the Parties negotiate a Shipper Agreement.

2.2. Fee Schedule.

- 2.2.1. <u>Existing Origins</u>. <u>Attachment 2.2</u> sets forth Fees for each existing Origin for Shippers with Shipper Agreements.
- 2.2.2. <u>Additional Origins</u>. The applicable Fees for any additional Origin(s) will be determined, if and when a Shipper requests service under this Tariff and (subject to System availability and compliance with the other terms and conditions of this Tariff) will be set forth in the applicable Shipper Agreement and by amendment to this Tariff.

2.3. Annual Adjustment.

Unless specified otherwise in the applicable Shipper Agreement, fees will be adjusted each July 1 in accordance with the indexing methodology of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") as described in 18 C.F.R. § 342.3, subject to the following qualifications:

- 2.3.1. In a given index year (July 1 through June 30), Carrier's annual adjustment will be the generally applicable index adjustment as published by FERC for that given index year.
- 2.3.2. In the event that application of the index adjustment as published by FERC for a given index year would result in a rate decrease, no index adjustment will be made.

3. RULES AND REGULATIONS

3.1. Commission Rule 3.71(1)-(19) Provisions.

Subject to additional and more specific provisions included in this Tariff and in the applicable Shipper Agreement, the following paragraphs are printed in this Tariff in accordance with Commission Rule 3.71(20):

- 3.1.1. All marketable oil to be received for transportation. By the term "marketable oil" is meant any crude petroleum adapted for refining or fuel purposes, properly settled and containing not more than 2.0% of basic sediment, water, or other impurities above a point six inches below the pipeline connection with the tank. Pipelines shall receive for transportation all such "marketable oil" tendered; but no pipeline shall be required to receive for shipment from any one person an amount exceeding 3,000 barrels of petroleum in any one day; and, if the oil tendered for transportation differs materially in character from that usually produced in the field and being transported therefrom by the pipeline, then it shall be transported under such terms as the shipper and the owner of the pipeline may agree or the Commission may require. (Amended by Section 3.5.)
- 3.1.2. Basic sediment, how determined--temperature. In determining the amount of sediment, water, or other impurities, a pipeline is authorized to make a test of the oil offered for transportation from an average sample from each such tank, by the use of centrifugal machine, or by the use of any other appliance agreed upon by the pipeline and the shipper. The same method of ascertaining the amount of the sediment, water, or other impurities shall be used in the delivery as in the receipt of oil. A pipeline shall not be required to receive for transportation, nor shall consignee be required to accept as a delivery, any oil of a higher temperature than 90 degrees Fahrenheit, except that during the summer oil shall be received at any atmospheric temperature, and may be delivered at like temperature. Consignee shall have the same right to test the oil upon delivery at destination that the pipeline has to test before receiving from the shipper. (Amended by Section 3.5.)
- 3.1.3. "Barrel" defined. For the purpose of these sections, a "barrel" of crude petroleum is declared to be 42 gallons of 231 cubic inches per gallon at 60 degrees Fahrenheit.
- 3.1.4. Oil involved in litigation, etc.--indemnity against loss. When any oil offered for transportation is involved in litigation, or the ownership is in dispute, or when the oil appears to be encumbered by lien or charge of any kind, the pipeline may require of shippers an indemnity bond to protect it against all loss. (Superseded by Sections 3.6 and 3.7.)
- 3.1.5. Storage. Each pipeline shall provide, without additional charge, sufficient storage, such as is incident and necessary to the transportation of oil, including storage at destination or so near thereto as to be available for prompt delivery to destination

- point, for five days from the date of order of delivery at destination. (Superseded by Section 3.12.)
- 3.1.6. Identity of oil, maintenance of oil. A pipeline may deliver to consignee either the identical oil received for transportation, subject to such consequences of mixing with other oil as are incident to the usual pipeline transportation, or it may make delivery from its common stock at destination; provided, if this last be done, the delivery shall be of substantially like kind and market value.
- 3.1.7. Minimum quantity to be received. A pipeline shall not be required to receive less than one tank car-load of oil when oil is offered for loading into tank cars at destination of the pipeline. When oil is offered for transportation for other than tank car delivery, a pipeline shall not be required to receive less than 500 barrels.
- 3.1.8. Gathering charges. Tariffs to be filed by a pipeline shall specify separately the charges for gathering of the oil, for transportation, and for delivery.
- 3.1.9. Measuring, testing, and deductions (reference Special Order Number 20-63,098 effective June 18, 1973). (Amended by Section 3.4.)
 - (a) Except as provided in subparagraph (b) of this paragraph, all crude oil tendered to a pipeline shall be gauged and tested by a representative of the pipeline prior to its receipt by the pipeline. The shipper may be present or represented at the gauging or testing. Quantities shall be computed from correctly compiled tank tables showing 100% of the full capacity of the tanks.
 - (b) As an alternative to the method of measurement provided in subparagraph (a) of this paragraph, crude oil and condensate may be measured and tested, before transfer of custody to the initial transporter, by:
 - (i) lease automatic custody transfer (LACT) equipment, provided such equipment is installed and operated in accordance with the latest revision of American Petroleum Institute (API) Manual of Petroleum Measurement Standards, Chapter 6.1, or;
 - (ii) any device or method, approved by the Commission or its delegate, which yields accurate measurements of crude oil or condensate.
 - (c) Adjustments to the quantities determined by the methods described in subparagraphs (a) or (b) of this paragraph shall be made for temperature from the nearest whole number degree to the basis of 60 degrees Fahrenheit and to the nearest 5/10 API degree gravity in accordance with the volume correction Tables 5A and 6A contained in API Standard 2540, American Society for Testing Materials 01250, Institute of Petroleum 200, first edition, August 1980. A pipeline may deduct the basic sediment, water, and other impurities as shown by the centrifugal or other test agreed upon by the shipper and pipeline; and 1.0% for evaporation and loss during transportation. The net balance shall be the quantity deliverable by the pipeline. In allowing the deductions, it is not

- the intention of the Commission to affect any tax or royalty obligations imposed by the laws of Texas on any producer or shipper of crude oil.
- (d) A transfer of custody of crude between transporters is subject to measurement as agreed upon by the transporters.
- 3.1.10. Delivery and demurrage. Each pipeline shall transport oil with reasonable diligence, considering the quality of the oil, the distance of transportation, and other material elements, but at any time after receipt of a consignment of oil, upon 24 hours' notice to the consignee, may offer oil for delivery from its common stock at the point of destination, conformable to paragraph (6) of this section, at a rate not exceeding 10,000 barrels per day of 24 hours. Computation of time of storage (as provided for in paragraph (5) of this section) shall begin at the expiration of such notice. At the expiration of the time allowed in paragraph (5) of this section for storage at destination, a pipeline may assess a demurrage charge on oil offered for delivery and remaining undelivered, at a rate for the first 10 days of \$.001 per barrel; and thereafter at a rate of \$.0075 per barrel, for each day of 24 hours or fractional part thereof.
- 3.1.11. Unpaid charges, lien for and sale to cover. A pipeline shall have a lien on all oil to cover charges for transportation, including demurrage, and it may withhold delivery of oil until the charges are paid. If the charges shall remain unpaid for more than five days after notice of readiness to deliver, the pipeline may sell the oil at public auction at the general office of the pipeline on any day not a legal holiday. The date for the sale shall be not less than 48 hours after publication of notice in a daily newspaper of general circulation published in the city where the general office of the pipeline is located. The notice shall give the time and place of the sale, and the quantity of the oil to be sold. From the proceeds of the sale, the pipeline may deduct all charges lawfully accruing, including demurrage, and all expenses of the sale. The net balance shall be paid to the person lawfully entitled thereto.
- 3.1.12. Notice of claim. Notice of claims for loss, damage, or delay in connection with the shipment of oil must be made in writing to the pipeline within 91 days after the damage, loss, or delay occurred. If the claim is for failure to make delivery, the claim must be made within 91 days after a reasonable time for delivery has elapsed.
- 3.1.13. Telephone-telegraph line--shipper to use. If a pipeline maintains a private telegraph or telephone line, a shipper may use it without extra charge, for messages incident to shipments. However, a pipeline shall not be held liable for failure to deliver any messages away from its office or for delay in transmission or for interruption of service.
- 3.1.14. Contracts of transportation. When a consignment of oil is accepted, the pipeline shall give the shipper a run ticket, and shall give the shipper a statement that shows the amount of oil received for transportation, the points of origin and destination, corrections made for temperature, deductions made for impurities, and the rate for such transportation.
- 3.1.15. Shipper's tanks, etc.--inspection. When a shipment of oil has been offered for transportation the pipeline shall have the right to go upon the premises where the oil is produced or stored, and have access to any and all tanks or storage receptacles for

the purpose of making any examination, inspection, or test authorized by this section.

- 3.1.16. Offers in excess of facilities. If oil is offered to any pipeline for transportation in excess of the amount that can be immediately transported, the transportation furnished by the pipeline shall be apportioned among all shippers in proportion to the amounts offered by each; but no offer for transportation shall be considered beyond the amount which the person requesting the shipment then has ready for shipment by the pipeline. The pipeline shall be considered as a shipper of oil produced or purchased by itself and held for shipment through its line, and its oil shall be entitled to participate in such apportionment. (Amended by Sections 3.10 and 3.11.4.)
- 3.1.17. Interchange of tonnage. Pipelines shall provide the necessary connections and facilities for the exchange of tonnage at every locality reached by two or more pipelines, when the Commission finds that a necessity exists for connection, and under such regulations as said Commission may determine in each case.
- 3.1.18. Receipt and delivery-necessary facilities for. Each pipeline shall install and maintain facilities for the receipt and delivery of marketable crude petroleum of shippers at any point on its line if the Commission finds that a necessity exists therefor, and under regulations by the Commission.
- 3.1.19. Reports of loss from fires, lightning, and leakage. (Amended by Section 3.7 and 3.8.)
 - (a) Each pipeline shall immediately notify the Commission district office, electronically or by telephone, of each fire that occurs at any oil tank owned or controlled by the pipeline, or of any tank struck by lightning. Each pipeline shall in like manner report each break or leak in any of its tanks or pipelines from which more than five barrels escape. Each pipeline shall file the required information with the Commission in accordance with the appropriate Commission form within 30 days from the date of the spill or leak.
 - No risk of fire, storm, flood, or act of God, and no risk resulting from (b) riots, insurrection, rebellion, war, or act of the public enemy, or from quarantine or authority of law or any order, requisition or necessity of the government of the United States in time of war, shall be borne by a pipeline, nor shall any liability accrue to it from any damage thereby occasioned. If loss of any crude oil from any such causes occurs after the oil has been received for transportation, and before it has been delivered to the consignee, the shipper shall bear a loss in such proportion as the amount of his shipment is to all of the oil held in transportation by the pipeline at the time of such loss, and the shipper shall be entitled to have delivered only such portion of his shipment as may remain after a deduction of his due proportion of such loss, but in such event the shipper shall be required to pay charges only on the quantity of oil delivered. This section shall not apply if the loss occurs because of negligence of the pipeline.

(c) Common carrier pipelines shall mail (return receipt requested) or hand deliver to landowners (persons who have legal title to the property in question) and residents (persons whose mailing address is the property in question) of land upon which a spill or leak has occurred, all spill or leak reports required by the Commission for that particular spill or leak within 30 days of filing the required reports with the Commission. Registration with the Commission by landowners and residents for the purpose of receiving spill or leak reports shall be required every five years, with renewal registration starting January 1, 1999. If a landowner or resident is not registered with the Commission, the common carrier is not required to furnish such reports to the resident or landowner.

Having printed the provisions from Commission Rule 3.71 in this Section 3.1, Carrier's supplemental rules and regulations are stated in Sections 3.2 through 3.12 below.

3.2. Nominations.

Any Shipper desiring to tender crude oil for transportation shall make a Nomination to the Carrier before 12:00 noon Central Standard Time/Central Daylight Saving Time, whichever is applicable, on the twenty-fifth (25th) day of the month preceding the movement. When the twenty-fifth (25th) day of the month falls on a weekend, nominations will be required prior to 12:00 noon Central Standard Time/Central Daylight Saving Time, whichever is applicable, on the preceding workday. When the twenty-fifth (25th) day of the month falls on a holiday, nominations will be required prior to 12:00 NOON Central Standard Time/Central Daylight Saving Time, whichever is applicable, two (2) workdays prior to the holiday. Unless such notification is made, the Carrier will be under no obligation to accept Crude Petroleum for transportation.

3.3. Invoicing and Payment.

Unless specified otherwise in the applicable Shipper Agreement:

- 3.3.1. Carrier will prepare and transmit to Shipper a monthly invoice for amounts due and owing for Shipper's Product transported hereunder based on the monthly volume determined at the applicable Origin and Destination LACT Meter(s). Carrier may transmit those invoices by email or other mutually agreeable means.
- 3.3.2. Shipper will pay Carrier the amount due under each invoice on the later of: (i) the twentieth day of the Month following the Month of service, (ii) 15 business days from the date that Shipper receives that invoice, or (iii) the date specified on that invoice.
- 3.3.3. Unpaid amounts that are past due will bear interest of 5% per annum from the due date until paid to the extent permitted by Applicable Law. If the unpaid amount remains past due more than 30 days, Carrier may refuse to accept additional Shipper Product for transport in addition to other remedies to the extent permitted by Applicable Law.

3.4. Measurement, Inventory Accounting and Specifications.

Unless specified otherwise in the applicable Shipper Agreement:

3.4.1. Carrier will arrange to measure and maintain records on the amount and quality of Shipper's Product received and delivered and will provide the metering and sampling facilities. Measurement and sampling of all receipts and deliveries of Shipper's Product by Carrier may be witnessed by a representative of Shipper and if Shipper's representative makes no objection or was not present, then the results of that measurement and sampling will be deemed conclusive absent manifest error or fraud. Quantities will be determined from correctly compiled tank table or Carrier-approved automatic equipment and adjusted to the temperature of 60° Fahrenheit. Where measurement is made by meter, a further correction will be made for pressure in accordance with A.P.I. (American Petroleum Institute) Standard 1101 - Measurement of Petroleum Liquid Hydrocarbons by Pipeline Displacement Meters. Deductions will be made for the actual amount of suspended basic sediment, water, and other impurities as ascertained by centrifuge or other tests, if other tests are agreed upon. Crude oil will not be accepted from pressurized vessels. All receipts of crude oil and indirect liquid products having an API gravity of 55 degrees or above shall be subject to a deduction to cover shrinkage and evaporation. Such deduction shall be determined in accordance with the following table:

API Gravity, Degrees	Deduction for Incremental Evaporation and Loss
55° through 59.9°	1%
60° through 74.9°	3%
Greater than 75°	5%

- 3.4.2. All records made pursuant to Section 3.4.1 will be available for Shipper's inspection and audit at all reasonable times, except that Carrier will not be required to maintain any record for a period longer than 24 Months from the entry of that record.
- 3.4.3. Carrier will furnish Shipper with reports of receipt, delivery, inventory and sample analysis as normally required in a common carrier pipeline operation or such other reports as may be mutually agreed upon. If Shipper requests any testing, sampling or reports that are not required to be performed by Carrier under this provision or the Shipper Agreement, then Shipper will reimburse Carrier for all associated costs and expenses incurred in satisfying that request.

3.5. Specifications as to Quality.

3.5.1. Unless the specifications as to quality of a connecting carrier at the Delivery Point are more stringent that those of the Carrier, in which case the limitations of the connecting carrier will be applied to the Shipper, the following specifications shall apply. No crude oil will be accepted for transportation except good merchantable oil (1) of the gravity of 28° A.P.I. (American Petroleum Institute) or higher, (2) which is properly settled and contains not more than one percent of basic sediment, water, and other impurities, (3) has a temperature not in excess of 120° Fahrenheit, (4) contains less than one part per million of organic chlorides (total sample), (5) has a Reid Vapor Pressure of no more than 9.0, and (6) does not have a sulfur content weight percentage greater than 0.40%. If crude oil is accepted from tankage, settled bottoms in such tanks must not be above a point four inches below the bottom of the pipeline connection with the tank from which it enters Carrier's facilities. No crude oil will be accepted unless its gravity, viscosity, and other characteristics are such

that it will be readily susceptible of transportation through the Carrier's existing facilities, and it will not materially affect the quality of other shipments or cause disadvantage to other Shippers or the Carrier.

3.5.2. No crude oil will be accepted for transportation unless distillation of any stream sample taken downstream from the sample point or from tankage has an IBP (Initial Boiling Point) of at least 100° Fahrenheit and at least 80% of the volume of the sample has been distilled when the temperature of the sample reaches 700° Fahrenheit using ASTM.

3.6. Title.

Carrier shall have the right to reject any crude oil, when tendered for transportation, which may be involved in litigation, or the title to which may be in dispute, or which may be encumbered by lien or charge of any kind, and it may require of Shipper satisfactory evidence of Shipper's perfect and unencumbered title or satisfactory indemnity bond to protect Carrier. By tendering crude oil, Shipper warrants and guarantees that Shipper has good title thereto and agrees to hold Carrier harmless from any and all loss, cost, liability, damage and/or expense resulting from failure of title thereto; provided, that acceptance for transportation shall not be deemed a representation by Carrier as to title.

3.7. Indemnity.

Carrier's and Shipper's indemnity obligations are set forth in the Shipper Agreement; provided that, in any event, to the extent permitted by Applicable Law, Shipper will indemnify, defend, and hold harmless Carrier from any and all Losses arising from or out of personal injury or property damage attributable to Shipper's Crude Oil when Shipper shall be deemed to be in control and possession of Shipper's Crude Oil. Shipper agrees that its indemnity obligations will be supported by insurance and that such insurance shall not be deemed to be a cap on Shipper's liability in respect of such indemnity obligations.

3.8. Disclaimer of Damages.

CARRIER'S AND SHIPPER'S LIABILITY OBLIGATIONS ARE SET FORTH IN THE SHIPPER AGREEMENT; PROVIDED THAT, IN ANY EVENT, CARRIER'S LIABILITY HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO DIRECT ACTUAL DAMAGES ONLY. SUCH DIRECT ACTUAL DAMAGES SHALL BE THE SOLE AND EXCLUSIVE REMEDY, AND ALL OTHER REMEDIES OR DAMAGES AT LAW OR IN EQUITY ARE WAIVED. CARRIER SHALL NOT BE LIABLE HEREUNDER TO THE OTHER PARTY OR ITS AFFILIATES FOR SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY, OR INDIRECT DAMAGES, LOST PROFITS (OTHER THAN DIRECT, ACTUAL LOST PROFITS), OR OTHER BUSINESS INTERRUPTION OR SIMILAR DAMAGES, BY STATUTE, IN TORT, OR CONTRACT, UNDER ANY INDEMNITY PROVISION OR OTHERWISE.

3.9. Linefill.

During the term of the applicable Shipper Agreement, Shipper will maintain its proportionate share of linefill, based on the proportionate volumes of Shipper's Product that Carrier transports on each segment of the Oryx Gathering System. Within 60 days after termination of the applicable Shipper Agreement (or such other mutually agreed period), Carrier

will redeliver Shipper's linefill at the applicable Destination(s) or provide such other alternative treatment as the Parties may mutually agree.

3.10. Interruption and Curtailment.

Carrier may stop or reduce transportation service to any Shipper for such periods of time as Carrier may reasonably require to perform or allow any repairs, maintenance, replacement, upgrading or other work related to the Facilities, or upstream/downstream facilities in circumstances that do not constitute Force Majeure. If such a stoppage ("Interruption") or reduction ("Curtailment") is due to a planned outage, Carrier will give Shipper prior notice of the Interruption or Curtailment as soon as reasonably possible. If an Interruption or Curtailment is unforeseen, Carrier will give Shipper notice of that Interruption and Curtailment as soon thereafter as reasonably possible.

3.11. Force Majeure and Allocation.

Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Shipper Agreement:

- 3.11.1. If a Force Majeure event prevents Carrier or Shipper from performing its obligations hereunder (except any obligation to pay monetary amounts), the obligations of the other Party will be abated in the same proportion as the force majeured Party's inability to perform during that period. When that Force Majeure period ends, the force majeured Party's obligations will be reinstated.
- 3.11.2. The force majeured Party will give notice and a detailed description of the Force Majeure event by appropriate means as soon as reasonably possible after occurrence of the Force Majeure event. To the extent that the force majeured Party is able, it will remedy the Force Majeure event with all reasonable dispatch.
- 3.11.3. If Shipper is unable to have Product delivered to it hereunder at the applicable Destination, as a result of Force Majeure or any other cause, Carrier will reasonably cooperate with Shipper with respect to Shipper's disposition of such Product in or outside of the Oryx Gathering System. In the event Carrier is unable to accept Product at any applicable Origin(s), as a result of Force Majeure or any other cause, Carrier agrees to reasonably cooperate with Shipper with respect to Shipper's disposition of such Product either by (a) establishing a new Origin on the Oryx Gathering System, which, if additional costs or tariffs result from using this new Connection Point(s), a temporary Throughput Fee adjustment will be mutually agreed upon by the Parties, or (b) allowing Shipper to temporarily make other dispositions of Product outside the Oryx Gathering System.
- 3.11.4. If Carrier is unable to transport all of a Shipper's Product to the applicable Destination due to proration by the Connecting Carrier, Carrier may, by notice to Shipper and only during the time during which such curtailment is in effect (the "Proration Period"), adjust Shipper's ability to transport Product on the Oryx Gathering System downward by a quantity equal to Shipper's pro rata share of Carrier's total curtailed quantity, using as the basis for the allocation the ratio of Shipper's actual transported Product for the most recent 12 Month period to the sum of all quantities transported through the Oryx Gathering System for delivery to the applicable Destination(s) over the same period. During the Proration Period, Carrier will temporarily release from commitment hereunder the curtailed Product only until Carrier is able to transport all of Shipper's Product to the applicable Destination.

3.12. Storage of Crude Oil in Transit.

Carrier will provide working tankage that is incident and necessary to the transportation of crude oil, but does not provide or offer storage service. Upon delivery of crude oil into Carrier's working tankage, title to such crude oil shall remain with Shipper and not with Carrier. Carrier shall continue to have the right to gauge and examine such crude oil from time to time as desired while it is in said tanks.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank. Attachment 1.1 begins on the next page].

ATTACHMENT 1.1

DEFINITIONS

TERM		DEFINITION
1.	Applicable Law	Any statute, law, treaty provision, ordinance, executive order, rule, procedure, or regulation (including a regulation that has been formally promulgated in a rulemaking proceeding but, pending final adoption, is in proposed or temporary form having force of law), guideline, or notice having force of law; or approval, permit, license, franchise, judgment, order, decree, injunction, or writ of any Governmental Authority, in each case as applicable to a specified Person or specified property, as in effect from time to time.
2.	Area A ¹	The leases in Martin County and Andrews County, Texas where the following LACT meters are located: MB 138; MB 139; MB 22; MB 239; MB 239A; MB 24; MB 240-1; MB 240-2; MB 240-3; MB 240-A; MB 240-B; MB 240C1; MB 240C2; MB 240CH; MB 24H-N; MB 24H-S; MB OH; MB P-1; MB P-2.
3.	Area B ¹	The leases in Ector County, Texas where the following LACT meters are located: RAT A1; RAT A2; RAT A3; RAT B; RAT C; RAT D; RAT E; RAT F; RAT G; RAT I; RATA2903.
4.	Area C ¹	The lease in Ector County, Texas where the following LACT meter is located: Hurt
5.	Area D ¹	The leases in Martin County and Andrews County, Texas where the following LACT meters are located: CRPNTR; MASON H W; TAWNY; UL MASON; JAGUAR
6.	Area E ¹	The leases in Martin County, Texas where the following LACT meters are located: BL H; BL H W; BL NORTH; BLK HA-7; MB BL 1; MB BL 12; MB BL 2; MB BL 4; MB BL 8; HOLT BAT
7.	Area F ¹	The leases in Midland County, Texas where the following LACT meters are located: BLACKFT; BUTTE; DUSTY EVANS.
8.	Area G ¹	The leases in Andrews County, Texas where the following LACT meters are located:MB E; MB L; MB LN; MB M; MB W; UN7-24.

9.	Area H ¹	The leases in Martin County, Texas where the following LACT meters are located: MB B N; MB B S; MB C S; MB CH; MB CH E; MB CH N; MB CH S; MB D; MB G; MB H; MB J; MB KJH; MB X; MB Y; MB Y/UL; UN7-13#1; UN7-13#2; UN7-16; UN7-17; UN7-27 N; UN7-27 S; UN7-30; UN7-31 H #1; UN7-31 H #2; UN71716H.
10.	Area I ¹	The leases in Midland County, Texas where the following LACT meters are located: CD-1; CD-2; CD-3.
11.	Area J ¹	The leases in Andrews, Martin and Gaines County, Texas where the following LACT meters are located: 6-31-07; CHABLIS; ECHOLS #2; ECHOLS; NE; NORTH; PAT PLOW; PINOTAGE; RIESLING; UL 26/27; UL CNTRL; UL SOUTH; UL SW; 6-41-06; MAK SBU.
12.	Area K ¹	The leases in Martin County, Texas where the following LACT meters are located: Battery #4146 and Battery #4156.
13.	Area L ¹	The following truck station in Andrews County, Texas: Mabee Truck Station.
14.	Area M ¹	The leases in Andrews County, Texas where the following LACT meters are located UL8-4, UL5-38 and UL5-22.
15.	Carrier	As defined in the first paragraph.
16.	Commission	The Railroad Commission of Texas.
17.	Connecting Carrier(s)	Downstream common carrier crude petroleum pipelines that are connected to the Oryx Gathering System at the Destination(s) including Plains Pipeline, L.P., Centurion Pipeline, L.P., Enterprise Crude Pipeline LLC, and Oryx Midland Oil Gathering LLC Midland Express Pipeline and as specified in the applicable Shipper Agreement.
18.	Curtailment	As defined in Section 3.10.
19.	Destination(s)	As defined in Section 2.1.
20.	Effective Date	As set forth on the cover page of the Tariff's cover page.
21.	Existing Origins	As identified on Attachment 2.2.

22.	Facilities	Carrier's facilities constituting the Oryx Gathering System.
23.	Fee Schedule	As described in Section 2.2 and attached to this Tariff.
24.	Fees	Throughput fees, hand run device fees, and other allowances or adjustments that apply to specific Origins as described in or authorized by the Fee Schedule.
25.	Force Majeure	Any event or occurrence beyond the reasonable control of a Party that delays or prevents such Party from performing its obligations under the applicable Shipper Agreement including, without limitation, the following: Acts of God; strikes, lockouts, boycotts, picketing, labor or other industrial disturbance of the Party claiming the Force Majeure; explosions; nuclear reaction or radiation, radioactive contamination; fires; acts of terrorism; breakage of or accidents to facilities not caused by negligence by the Party claiming the Force Majeure; wars (declared or undeclared); blockades; insurrections; riots; epidemics; landslides; earthquakes; storms; hurricanes; lightning; floods; extreme cold or freezing; extreme heat; washouts; arrests and restraints of governments (but excluding restraints occurring as a result of any violations, by the Party claiming the right to delay performance, of applicable law or of the terms and provisions of the applicable Shipper Agreement); confiscation or seizure by any government or public authority; compliance with any federal, state, or local law, or with any regulation, order, or rule of domestic or international governmental agencies, or authorities or representatives of any domestic or international government acting under claim or color of authority; inability to obtain or delay in obtaining appropriate materials, supplies or labor not caused by negligence of the Party claiming the Force Majeure; events of Force Majeure declared by a third party that interfere with performance under the applicable Shipper Agreement; the commandeering or requisitioning by United States civil or military authorities of any raw or component materials, Product, or facilities including, but not limited to, producing, manufacturing, transportation, and delivery facilities, and perils of navigation, even when occasioned by negligence, malfeasance, default, or errors in judgment; and civil disturbances. Force Majeure shall not include (i) changes in costs of materials or Product, or (ii) a Party's
26.	Governmental Authority	Any federal, state, foreign, tribal, local, or municipal governmental body; and any governmental, regulatory, or administrative agency, commission, body, agency, instrumentality, or other authority exercising or entitled to

		exercise any executive, judicial, legislative, administrative, regulatory, or taxing authority or power, including any court or other tribunal.
27.	Interruption	As defined in Section 3.10.
28.	LACT Meter	A lease automatic custody transfer unit.
29.	Losses	Any actual loss, cost, claim, penalty, liability, damage, demand, suit, sanction, cause of action of every kind of character (including damage to property, personal injury, or death), judgment, lien, encumbrance, fine, or expense, including reasonable attorneys' fees, investigation expenses, and court costs.
30.	Month	The period beginning at 12:00 a.m. (midnight) Midland, Texas time on the first day of a calendar month and ending at t 2:00 a.m. (midnight) Midland, Texas time on the last day of the same calendar month.
31.	Nomination	A written offer or tender by a Shipper to Carrier of a stated quantity of crude oil for transportation from a specified receipt point to a specified delivery point in accordance with this Tariff.
32.	Origin(s)	As defined in Section 2.1.
33.	Party	Party to an applicable Shipper Agreement.
34.	Person	Any individual, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, other business organization of any kind, association, trust, or governmental entity, agency, or instrumentality.
35.	Product	Crude oil owned or purchased by Shipper at the Origin(s) that meets the downstream Connecting Carrier specifications at the Destination(s) under the applicable Shipper Agreement.
36.	Proration Period	As defined in Section 3.11.4.
37.	Oryx Gathering System	Carrier's Facilities that are used to transport Product from the Origin(s) to the Destination(s).
38.	Rules and Regulations	As defined in the first paragraph.

39.	Shipper	The Person (and its successors and permitted assignees) that executes a Shipper Agreement and ships Product in accordance with the Shipper Agreement and this Tariff.
40.	Shipper Agreement	As defined in Section 2.1.
41.	Tariff	As defined in the first paragraph.
42.	Year	A period of twelve consecutive Months.

Area definitions are correct as of the day of filing. For updated Area definitions, please contact Oryx Midland Oil Gathering LLC.

ATTACHMENT 2.2

FEE SCHEDULE

- 1.1. Shipper Agreement; Origin(s) & Destination(s); Connecting Carrier Specifications.
 - 1.1.1. In accordance with Section 2.1 of this Tariff, each Shipper may be required toenter a Shipper Agreement that states the applicable Origin(s) and Destination(s) subject to the other terms and conditions of this Tariff.
 - 1.1.2. All Destinations on the Oryx Gathering System are to Connecting Carriers.
 - 1.1.3. All Shipper's Product at the Origin(s) must meet the applicable Connecting Carrier's specifications at the applicable Destination(s).
- 1.2. Fees for Existing Origins

From	То	Rate*	Hand-Run Device Fee, If applicable
Area A	Mabee Plains Connection	\$1.6369***[I]	
	Mabee Centurion Connection	\$1.6369***[I]	
	Mabee Enterprise Connection	\$1.6369***[I]	
	Oryx Midland Express Connection	\$1.6369***[I]	
Area B	Ratliff Enterprise Connection	\$1.6369***[I]	
	[C] Oryx Midland Express Connection	\$1.569***[C]	

Area C	Ratliff Enterprise Connection	\$0.9170***[U]	\$0.3278** [U]
Area D	Joe Mabee Plains Connection	\$0.7635***[U]	\$0.2122** [U]
	Mabee Centurion Connection	\$0.7635***[U]	\$0.2122** [U]
	Mabee Enterprise Connection	\$0.7635***[U]	\$0.2122** [U]
	Oryx Midland Express Connection	\$0.7635***[U]	\$0.2122** [U]
Area E	Joe Mabee Plains Connection	\$0.7635***[U]	\$0.2122** [U]
	Mabee Centurion Connection	\$0.7635***[U]	\$0.2122** [U]
	Mabee Enterprise Connection	\$0.7635***[U]	\$0.2122** [U]
	Oryx Midland Express Connection	\$0.7635***[U]	\$0.2122** [U]
Area F	Midland Centurion Connection	\$0.2723***[U]	\$0.2122** [U]
Area G	Joe Mabee Plains Connection	\$0.8179***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
	Mabee Centurion Connection	\$0.8179***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]

	Mabee Enterprise Connection	\$0.8179***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
	Oryx Midland Express Connection	\$0.8179***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
Area H	Joe Mabee Plains Connection	\$0.8179***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
	Mabee Centurion Connection	\$0.8179***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
	Mabee Enterprise Connection	\$0.8179***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
	Oryx Midland Express Connection	\$0.8179***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
Area I	Plains Casselman	\$0.6535***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
Area J	Joe Mabee Plains Connection	\$0.7635***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
	Mabee Centurion Connection	\$0.7635***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
	Mabee Enterprise Connection	\$0.7635***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
	Oryx Midland Express Connection	\$0.7635***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
Area K	Joe Mabee Plains Connection	\$0.2723***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
	Mabee Centurion Connection	\$0.8179***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]

	Oryx Midland Express Connection	\$0.8179***[U]	\$0.2178**[U]
Area L	Mabee Centurion Connection	\$0.4367***[U]	
	Mabee Enterprise Connection	\$0.4367***[U]	\$0.2060**[U]
	Oryx Midland Express Connection	\$0.4367***[U]	
Area M	Joe Mabee Plains	\$0.7312***[U]	\$0.209**[U]
	Mabee Centurion Connection	\$0.7312***[U]	\$0.209**[U]
	Mabee Enterprise Connection	\$0.7312***[U]	\$0.209**[U]
	Oryx Midland Express Connection	\$0.7312***[U]	

^{*} Annual Adjustment: These fees will be adjusted each July 1 in accordance with the FERC indexing methodology as described in 18 C.F.R. § 342.3. *See* Section 2.3.

EXPLANATION OF REFERENCE MARKS

[C] CANCEL

[I] INCREASE

[U] UNCHANGED RATE

^{**}Hand Run Fee will apply if a hand run device is utilized.

^{***}Additional fees may apply to recover certain direct costs incurred to design, construct, and commission facilities to the extent provided in the applicable Shipper Agreement.